2003-04 BUDGET PAPER No. 2

BUDGET MEASURES 2003-04

CIRCULATED BY
THE HONOURABLE PETER COSTELLO, M.P.,
TREASURER OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF AUSTRALIA, AND
SENATOR THE HONOURABLE NICK MINCHIN,
MINISTER FOR FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION,
FOR THE INFORMATION OF HONOURABLE MEMBERS
ON THE OCCASION OF THE BUDGET 2003-04
13 MAY 2003

© Commonwealth of Australia 2003

ISBN 1741188865

This work is copyright. Apart from any use as permitted under the *Copyright Act* 1968, no part may be reproduced by any process without prior written permission from the Commonwealth available from the Department of Communications, Information Technology and the Arts. Requests and inquiries concerning reproduction and rights should be addressed to:

The Commonwealth Copyright Administration
Intellectual Property Branch
Department of Communications, Information Technology and the Arts
GPO Box 2154
CANBERRA ACT 2601

Or posted at: http://www.dcita.gov.au/cca

Internet

The Commonwealth budget papers and budget related information are available on the central Budget website at: www.budget.gov.au

FOREWORD

Budget Paper No. 2, *Budget Measures 2003-04* ensures that the Budget Papers provide comprehensive information on all Government decisions announced in the Budget that involve changes to its revenue, expense and investing activities.

Budget Paper No. 2 comprises three parts:

- Part 1: Revenue Measures
- Part 2: Expense Measures
- Part 3: Capital Measures

Revenue measures are defined as those measures that affect taxation or non-taxation revenues (on a Government Finance Statistics (GFS) basis).

Expense measures are defined as those measures that affect expenses (on a GFS basis).

Capital measures are defined as those measures that affect net capital investment, defined as the change in non-financial assets. Capital measures that fall outside of this definition, such as equity injections or loans used for purposes other than investment in non-financial assets, are shown as having a zero impact on the fiscal balance.

A summary of all measures introduced since 2002-03 Budget is included in each part. Measures introduced since the *Mid-Year Economic and Fiscal Outlook* 2002-03 (MYEFO) including measures in this Budget, are described in detail. Detailed descriptions of measures up to the time of the MYEFO are contained in that document.

Notes

- (a) The following definitions are used in this Budget Paper:
 - 'real' means adjusted for the effect of inflation;
 - real growth in expenses is measured by the non-farm Gross Domestic Product deflator;
 - Budget year refers to 2003-04, while the forward years refer to 2004-05, 2005-06 and 2006-07; and
 - one billion is equal to one thousand million.
- (b) Figures in tables and generally in the text have been rounded. Discrepancies in tables between totals and sums of components are due to rounding:
 - estimates under \$100,000 are rounded to the nearest thousand;
 - estimates \$100,000 and over are generally rounded to the nearest tenth of a million;

- estimates midway between rounding points are rounded up; and
- the percentage changes in statistical tables are calculated using unrounded data.
- (c) For the budget balance, a negative sign indicates a deficit while no sign indicates a surplus.
- (d) The following notations are used:

* The nature of this measure is such that a reliable estimate

cannot be provided.

NEC/nec not elsewhere classified

AEST Australian Eastern Standard Time

- Nil

.. not zero, but rounded to zero

na not available

nfp not for publication

\$m \$ million

(e) The Australian Capital Territory and the Northern Territory are referred to as 'the Territories'. References to the 'States' or 'each State' include the Territories. The following abbreviations are used for the names of the States, where appropriate:

NSW New South Wales

VIC/Vic Victoria

QLD/Qld Queensland

WA Western Australia
SA South Australia

TAS/Tas Tasmania

ACT Australian Capital Territory

NT Northern Territory

Budget Paper No. 2, *Budget Measures 2003-04* is one of a series of Budget Papers that provides information to supplement the Budget Speech. A full list of the series is printed on the inside cover of this paper.

CONTENTS

Part 1: Revenue measures	1
Attorney-General's	7
Communications, Information Technology and the Arts	10
Education, Science and Training	12
Environment and Heritage	15
Family and Community Services	16
Health and Ageing	17
Immigration and Multicultural and Indigenous Affairs	18
Transport and Regional Services	
Treasury	21
Part 2: Expense measures	45
Agriculture, Fisheries and Forestry	67
Attorney-General's	74
Communications, Information Technology and The Arts	93
Cross portfolio	101
Defence	102
Education, Science and Training	106
Employment and Workplace Relations	129
Environment and Heritage	133
Family and Community Services	138
Finance and Administration	154
Foreign Affairs and Trade	157
Health and Ageing	
Immigration and Multicultural and Indigenous Affairs	200
Industry, Tourism and Resources	205
Parliamentary Departments	209
Prime Minister and Cabinet	210
Transport and Regional Services	212
Treasury	218
Veterans' Affairs	226
Part 3: Capital measures	229
Attorney-general's	233
Communications, Information Technology and the Arts	236
Cross Portfolio	237
Defence	238
Education, Science and Training	239
Employment and Workplace Relations	242

Part 3: Capital measures (continued)

Environment and Heritage	243
Family and Community Services	244
Finance and Administration	246
Foreign Affairs and Trade	248
Immigration and Multicultural and Indigenous Affairs	252
Prime Minister and Cabinet	254
Transport and Regional Services	255
Treasury	257

Table of measures by portfolio

Part 1: Revenue measures

Attorney-General's	7
A Safer Australia — cost recovery for enhanced checking of aviation security identification card holders	7
A Safer Australia — cost recovery for x-ray facilities for shipping container inspections	7
Chemical paraquat dichloride — removal of import duty	
Passenger motor vehicle and automotive components — reduction in tariff rate	8
Singapore-Australia Free Trade Agreement — reduced tariffs	9
Communications, Information Technology and the Arts	10
Government Bookshop Network — closure	
Premium rate telephone numbers — cost recovery for service provider rules	
Submarine telecommunications cables — protection and cost recovery	
Telecommunications competition regulation — cost recovery	
Education, Science and Training	12
A Fairer Medicare — additional medical school places	
International Education — increase in the Educational Services for Overseas Students Fee	12
Our Universities — Higher Education Loans Programme (HELP) — HECS-HELP, FEE-HELP and OS-HELP	13
Radioactive waste management facility — collection and disposal charges	
Environment and Heritage	15
Sydney Harbour Federation Trust — rent	
Family and Community Services	
Student Financial Supplement Scheme — repeal	
Health and Ageing	17
Private health insurance levy — supporting the Private Health Insurance Ombudsman	17
Immigration and Multicultural and Indigenous Affairs	18
International Education — Professional Development Visa	18
International Education — Student Guardian Visa	18
International Education — Student Visa Application Charge	19

Transport and Regional Services	20
Sydney airport noise levy — extension	20
Treasury	21
Income tax	21
Alienation of personal services income — changes to the treatment of	21
losses	
Capital gains tax — roll-over for worker entitlement funds	21
Capital gains tax — roll-over relief for financial service providers on transition to the Financial Services Reform regime	22
Consolidation — allowing certain trusts to head consolidated groups	22
Consolidation — transitional exclusion of certain value shifts from the General Value Shifting Regime	23
Deductibility of certain gifts	
Deductions for certain conservation covenants	
Employee share schemes — roll-over of taxing point on corporate	25
restructure	
Farm Management Deposits Scheme — earlier access to deposits	25
Imputation system — allow former exempting entities to carry forward surplus exempting credit balances	26
Imputation system — allow franking of non-share dividends	26
Imputation system — removal of franking additional tax	26
International taxation — changes to the taxation treatment of certain foreign hybrid entities	27
International taxation — interaction between transfer pricing provisions and royalty withholding tax	27
International taxation — Review of International Taxation	
Arrangements	
International taxation — trans-Tasman imputation (triangular) reform	29
Medical expenses offset — include payments for maintaining dogs for the guidance or assistance of disabled individuals	30
Medicare levy — increase in thresholds	30
No-Australian Business Number - amendments to withholding rules	31
Personal income tax reductions	31
Petroleum resource rent tax — deductibility of closing down costs	33
Petroleum resource rent tax — partial use of infrastructure	33
Simplified Tax System — allow depreciating asset roll-over relief on	
partnership reconstitutions	
Simplified Tax System — extending eligibility to retail fuel outlets	34
Tax exemption for Australian Defence Force members on Operation	25

Treasury (continued)	
Tax exemption for Second World War compensation payments	35
Tax exemption for structured orders	35
Taxation of discretionary trusts	36
Taxation of financial arrangements — application of the debt/equity reforms to certain related party at call loans	36
Taxation of financial arrangements — clarifying the debt/equity treatment of certain financial instruments	37
Taxation of financial arrangements — reform of taxation of foreign currency gains and losses	37
Taxation treatment of capital protected products	38
Uniform capital allowances — technical amendments to the mining provisions	39
Indirect tax	39
Aviation fuel excise — excise increase to provide supplementary funding for the Civil Aviation Safety Authority	39
Aviation fuel excise — extension of excise collection for Location Specific Pricing Subsidy	40
Fuel tax reform	40
Measures for a Better Environment — cleaner fuel	41
Fringe benefits tax	42
Alienation of personal services income — preventing the double taxation of fringe benefits	42
Aligning fringe benefits tax deemed depreciation rate with effective life of cars	43
Exemption for remote area housing fringe benefits provided by public hospitals	43
Non-tax revenue	44
Australian Prudential Regulation Authority — strengthened capabilities in prudential regulation	44
Superannuation Complaints Tribunal — additional funding	
Part 2: Expense measures	
Agriculture, Fisheries and Forestry	67
Drought assistance	67
Additional drought assistance measures	67
Country Women's Association Emergency Aid Fund	68
Drought affected areas — interim support	68
Drought Assistance — Exceptional Circumstances Declarations	69
Pest Animal Management Grants Programme	69

Agriculture, Fisheries and Forestry (continued)	
Personal counselling services for drought-affected communities in	70
rural regions	
Other measures in the Agriculture, Fisheries and Forestry portfolio	
Aquaculture Industry Action Agenda	
Aquaculture industry — reprioritisation of funding	
Farm Help — interim extension	71
National Landcare Programme — continuation	71
Red Imported Fire Ant — additional funding for eradication	71
Tasmanian Wheat Freight Shipping — continuation	72
Tuberculosis Freedom Assurance Programme — continuation	72
Tuberculosis Freedom Assurance Programme — reprioritisation of	
funding	72
Attorney-General's	74
A Safer Australia — continuing to build Australia's Domestic Security Capabili	
A Safer Australia — upgrade of the Australian Secure Network	
communications infrastructure	78
A Safer Australia — increased use of x-ray facilities for shipping	
container inspections	79
A Safer Australia — enhanced security for the Australian Nuclear	
Science and Technology Organisation	79
A Safer Australia — expansion of Australia's secure diplomatic	
communication network	79
A Safer Australia — enhanced Parliament House security	80
A Safer Australia — enhanced screening at Christmas Island and Cocos (Keeling) Islands airports	80
A Safer Australia — aviation security information management system	
A Safer Australia — enhanced maritime security arrangements	
A Safer Australia — Attorney-General's Department and the Australian Security Intelligence Organisation — enhanced counter-terrorism training	
A Safer Australia — enhanced Diplomatic and Australian Office	
Holder guarding services	82
A Safer Australia — armoured VIP limousines	82
A Safer Australia — continued funding for enhanced protective security	82
A Safer Australia — continuous operation of the national crisis	
management Watch Office	83
A Safer Australia — enhanced checking of aviation security	
identification card holders	83

Attorney-General's (continued)

	A Safer Australia — enhancing the counter-terrorism capabilities of the Australian Security Intelligence Organisation	84
	A Safer Australia — additional funding for financial monitoring by the Australian Transaction Reports and Analysis Centre	84
	A Safer Australia — National Security Hotline	
	A Safer Australia — measures to further enhance the response to	
	terrorism	85
	A Safer Australia — enhanced travel advice dissemination	85
	A Safer Australia — research into passport biometrics	86
	A Safer Australia — enhanced border protection processing systems	86
	A Safer Australia — enhanced analytical and technological capabilities for the Office of National Assessments	86
	A Safer Australia — national security public awareness campaign	87
Other	measures in the Attorney-General's portfolio	
	Administrative Appeals Tribunal	87
	Australia's Southern Ocean — surveillance and enforcement	
	programme	87
	Australian Crime Commission — additional funding to target money laundering and fraud	88
	Family Court of Western Australia — additional funding	88
	Family Law Pathways — continuation of Children's Contact Services	88
	Family Law Pathways — continued contribution to the Victorian Court Network	89
	Family Law Pathways — measures to improve compliance with Family Court child contact orders	89
	Family Law Pathways — online access to family law information and services	90
	Federal Magistrates Service — additional magistrates	90
	Firearms policy development — continuation of funding	91
	Handgun buyback programme	91
	International Criminal Court — Australia's contribution	91
	National Crime Prevention Programme — building safer communities	92
	Proceeds of Crime legislation — additional funding for implementation	92
Com:	nunications, Information Technology and The Arts	
COIIII	Australian Broadcasting Corporation	
	Australian Broadcasting Corporation — continuation of funding for	90
	Radio Australia	93
	Bundanon Trust	93

Con	nmunications, Information Technology and The Arts (continued)	
	Communications, Information Technology and the Arts Portfolio — decreased resourcing in 2003-04	94
	Contemporary Visual Arts and Crafts Inquiry — Government	
	response	
	Cultural Agencies Review	94
	Film Finance Corporation	95
	Freephone and Local Rate telephone number auctions	95
	Government Bookshop Network — closure	96
	MacArthur Museum Project — Commonwealth contribution	96
	National Institute of Dramatic Art — additional funding	97
	NetAlert	97
	Olympic and Paralympic Games in Athens 2004	97
	Premium rate telephone numbers — service provider rules	98
	Special Broadcasting Service Corporation	98
	Special Broadcasting Service Corporation — exemption from the Efficiency Dividend	98
	Special Broadcasting Service Corporation — overseas programme acquisition	99
	Submarine telecommunications cables — protection	
	Surf Life Saving Australia, Royal Life Saving Society Australia, Austswim and the Australian Ski Patrol Association — additional	-
	funding	
	Tough On Drugs In Sport — drug testing	100
Cros	ss portfolio	101
	Agency Banking Incentive Scheme — discontinuation	101
	Budget estimates — enhanced quality and timeliness	101
Defe	ence	102
	Australian Defence Force personnel numbers — accelerated growth	
	Bougainville Peace Monitoring Group — continuation of the	
	Australian Defence Force contribution to monitoring weapons disposal	102
	Coastal surveillance — continuation of funding for increased activity	102
	Iraq — funding for operations and rehabilitation activities	
	Logistics funding	
	Navy Personnel Retention Initiatives	
	Special Operations Command	
	Special Purpose Aircraft Facilities at Canberra International Airport	

Educ	ation, Science and Training	106
Our U	Iniversities — Backing Australia's Future	106
	Our Universities — Commonwealth Grants Scheme initiatives	108
	Our Universities — regional universities loading	109
	Our Universities - Higher Education Contribution Scheme — increased flexibility	109
	Our Universities - Higher Education Loans Programme (HELP) - HECS-HELP, FEE-HELP and OS-HELP	110
	Our Universities — national priority funding for additional student places and courses	111
	Our Universities — disadvantaged students improved participation	111
	Our Universities — scholarships	112
	Our Universities — teaching quality incentives	112
	Our Universities — quality assurance enhancement	
	Our Universities — Collaboration and Structural Reform Fund	
	Our Universities — Workplace Productivity Programme	114
	Our Universities — Higher Education Information Management	
	System	
	Our Universities - Marcus Oldham College	115
	Our Universities — marine science institute	
Intern	ational Education	116
	International Education — increased profile of Australia's International Education sector	118
	International Education — Endeavour Programme scholarships	118
	International Education — International Centres of Excellence	119
	International Education — National Centre for Language Training	119
	International Education — offshore quality assurance enhancements	120
	International Education — onshore compliance enhancements	120
	International Education — reprioritisation of funding from the Quality Outcomes Programme and Systemic Infrastructure Scheme	121
	International Education — electronic initiatives	121
	International Education — Professional Development Visa	
	International Education — Student Guardian Visa	
	International Education — working holiday maker arrangements	
Other	measures in the Education, Science and Training portfolio	
	Commonwealth Scientific and Industrial Research Organisation Flagship Initiative	
	Cooperative Research Centres Programme — additional funding for 2006-07	
	Education, Science and Training portfolio — reprioritisation	
	,	

Education, Science and Training (continued)	
Mount Stromlo Observatory — reconstruction after the bushfires	124
National Competitive Grants Programme — additional funding for 2006-07	125
National literacy and numeracy strategies and projects	125
New Apprenticeships Workforce Skills Development programme — consolidation of programme elements	
Non-government schools — capital funding	
Radioactive waste management facility	
Strategic Assistance for Improving Student Outcomes Programme — increased funding	
Transition (School to Work) Programmes	127
Vocational education and training — continued Commonwealth support	
Employment and Workplace Relations	129
Australian Industrial Relations Commission and Australian Industrial Registry — relocation	
Commonwealth Unfair Dismissal Scheme — expanded coverage	129
Employee Share Ownership Development Unit	129
Employment Innovation Fund	130
Indigenous Capital Assistance Scheme	130
Job search training — early access for young job seekers	131
Royal Commission into the Building and Construction Industry — initial response	131
Workplace Relations Act — measures to ensure compliance and enforce relevant orders	132
Environment and Heritage	133
Australian Biological Resources Study	133
Biodiversity Policy	133
Distinctively Australian	133
Environment Protection Policy	134
Great Barrier Reef Coastal Wetland Protection Programme	134
Meteorological radars - replacement and upgrade	134
National Oceans Office	135
Shipping support for Australia's Antarctic Programme	135
Sydney Harbour Federation Trust	135
Urban Environment Initiatives	136
World Class Weather Forecasting	136

Family and Community Services	138
Assurance of Support Scheme — improved operation	138
Australians Working Together Measures — changed arrangements	138
Bali Terrorist Attacks — ex-gratia payments for the Victims and Family members of Victims	139
Centrelink Rural Call Centres — continuation of funding	
Centrelink Service Delivery — enhanced information technology capability	
Child support debt collection — additional compliance activity	
Child Support improvements — support for unemployed parents	
Compliance reviews — expand data matching and asset reviews to identify incorrect payments	
Compliance reviews — extend 2002-03 data matching pilot	
Disability employment assistance — improved viability of business services	
Disability employment assistance — introduction of a case based funding model	
Disability Support Pensions — enhanced reviews	
Holocaust payments — extension of means test exemptions	
Household, Income and Labour Dynamics in Australia (HILDA)	
Survey — extended funding	144
Identity fraud — improving and increasing the number of investigations	144
Men and Family Relationships and Family Relationships Education Programmes — extended funding	
Notification arrangements for people departing Australia and consistent treatment of foreign debt recovery	
Parenting Payment — enhanced profiling capacity to ensure correct	
payment	146
Pensioner Education Supplement — matching payments to study periods	147
Reconnect and Job Placement, Employment and Training	
Research into emerging areas of risks to the social security system	
Respite support for carers of young people — continuation of funding	
Social Security Act 1991 — further legislative simplification	
Social Security Agreement with Chile	
Social Security Agreement with Malta — revised agreement	
Special Needs Subsidy Scheme — additional funding	
Student Financial Supplement Scheme — repeal	
Support for Indigenous people — continue funding for Centre for Aboriginal Economic and Policy Research	151

Family and Community Services (continued)	
Support for Indigenous people — expansion of Centrelink's agent and access point network	151
Support for Indigenous people — longitudinal study of Indigenous children	152
Temporary overseas absence provisions — reduction to 13 weeks	152
Youth Allowance — ex-gratia payments to former recipients in South Australia	153
Youth and student assistance — restructured reviews	153
Finance and Administration	154
Asset sales function — continuation of resourcing	
Christmas Island Permanent Immigration Reception and Processing Centre —completion of construction	154
Commonwealth Grants Commission — additional funding	
Ministerial Communications Network — refurbishment and enhancement	
Foreign Affairs and Trade	
Australian Secret Intelligence Service — enhanced output capabilities	
Australian Trade Commission — realignment of overseas network	
Bali — construction of a community eye treatment centre	
Bali — creation of a Bali memorial medical and health scholarship	
programme	158
Bali — new intensive care centre at Sanglah Hospital	158
International Development Law Organisation grant	159
International Relations Grants Programme	159
Iraq — humanitarian aid	159
Iraq - reopening of an Australian office	160
Nauru — maintenance of a temporary Consulate-General	160
World Trade Organisation — informal meeting of Ministers	161
Health and Ageing	162
A Fairer Medicare — Better Access, More Affordable	162
A Fairer Medicare — new GP training places	163
A Fairer Medicare - additional medical school places	164
A Fairer Medicare — more practice nurses and allied health workers for urban areas of workforce shortage	164
A Fairer Medicare — reducing up front costs for GP visits	
A Fairer Medicare — encourage GP take up of HIC Online	
A Fairer Medicare — GP incentive payments to bulk bill patients with	100
concession cards	165

Health and Ageing (continued)

5 5 7	
A Fairer Medicare — improved information and practice management	166
A Fairer Medicare — new Medicare safety net for patients with	
concession cards	166
A Fairer Medicare — new private health insurance safety net for	4
out-of-hospital Medicare expenses	
A Fairer Medicare — access to broadband technology	167
A Fairer Medicare — information for the public and medical professionals	147
A Fairer Medicare — veteran access fee for Local Medical Officers	
National Illicit Drugs Strategy Proportion of Illicit Drugs	100
National Illicit Drugs Strategy — Prevention of Illicit Drug Manufacturing Strategy	170
National Illicit Drugs Strategy — enhanced technical capacity for the Australian Crime Commission and the Australian Federal Police	
National Illicit Drugs Strategy — Australian Federal Police Law	
Enforcement Cooperation Programme	171
National Illicit Drugs Strategy — Australian Federal Police Overseas Liaison Network	
National Illicit Drugs Strategy — Australian Federal Police communications network	171
National Illicit Drugs Strategy — continued drug use monitoring by the Australian Institute of Criminology	172
National Illicit Drugs Strategy — enhanced financial intelligence to target illicit drug trafficking and related activities	172
National Illicit Drugs Strategy — financial intelligence intensive	
training and support for the Australian Transaction Reports and	
Analysis Centre	173
National Illicit Drugs Strategy — funding to the Australian Transaction Reports and Analysis Centre for the High-Risk Cash	
Dealer Strategy	173
National Illicit Drugs Strategy — reprioritisation of funding for	
retractable needles and syringes	174
National Illicit Drugs Strategy — cannabis cessation strategies	
National Illicit Drugs Strategy — redirection of funds from the	
Community Partnerships Initiative	174
National Illicit Drugs Strategy — psychostimulants initiative	175
National Illicit Drugs Strategy — National Comorbidity Initiative	175
National Illicit Drugs Strategy — research fund	175
National Illicit Drugs Strategy — rural and regional initiative	176
National Illicit Drugs Strategy — Australian Drug Information	
Network	176

Health and Ageing (continued)

	National Illicit Drugs Strategy — Needle and Syringe Programme distribution of injecting equipment	176
	National Illicit Drugs Strategy — maintain education, counselling and referral services through Needle and Syringe Programmes	177
	National Illicit Drugs Strategy — continuation of funding for the Illicit Drug Diversion Initiative	
	National Illicit Drugs Strategy — strengthening and supporting families coping with illicit drug use	
	National Illicit Drugs Strategy – National Schools Drug Education Strategy	
Other	measures in the Health and Ageing portfolio	
	100 extra aged care beds in regional health services - maintain funding	
	Aged Care Assessment Teams	
	Australian Health Care Agreements	
	Australian Radiation Protection and Nuclear Safety Agency	
	Commonwealth Carelink	
	Commonwealth Hearing Services Programme - indexation of charges	
	Dementia and challenging behaviours initiative	
	Diagnostic imaging — new agreements	
	Enhanced Divisional Quality Use of Medicines Programme — maintain funding	
	Focus on prevention – primary health care providers working together	
	Focus on prevention — community awareness and infrastructure	
	Focus on prevention — priority-setting mechanism	
	Food Standards Australia New Zealand — development of primary	
	production and processing standards	
	Food Standards Australia New Zealand — increased funding	184
	General Practice Education, Support and Community Linkages Programme —redirection of funding	185
	GP involvement in coordinated care planning	
	GPs in rural and remote areas — retention payments	
	Health Insurance Commission — additional funding	
	Health <i>Connect</i> — a national information network	
	Hepatitis C prevention and education — maintain funding	
	Improved Monitoring of Pharmaceutical Benefits Scheme Entitlements initiative	
	Lifetime Health Cover — terminate funding for implementation	
	Medical Indemnity Insurance Framework — rural obstetricians	
	Modicaro Facyclaim	180

Health and Ageing (continued) National Blood Authority — establishment and new Commonwealth National Health and Medical Research Council — regulation of research involving embryos and prohibition of human cloning191 National Meningococcal C Campaign — additional funding......191 Office of the Gene Technology Regulator......192 Pharmaceutical Benefits Scheme - improved entitlement validation of Private Health Insurance Ombudsman — maintain existing funding194 Private Health Insurance Premiums — further measures to contain future increases 194 Community Development Employment Projects Programme – Cross-portfolio Indigenous flexible funding arrangements.......................201 Department of Immigration and Multicultural and Indigenous Affairs - review of funding arrangements 202 Humanitarian Programme 2003-04 — coordinating community Immigration detention onshore — review of long-term strategy......203 Multicultural policy development and implementation — extension of

Industry, Tourism and Resources	205
Automotive assistance package post-2005	205
Geoscience Australia - Core Petroleum Programme	205
Geoscience Australia - seismic data acquisition and preservation	206
ISONET/SAMP — extension of funding	206
National Measurement Institute — establishment	206
Pharmaceuticals Partnerships Program	207
R&D Start — extension of funding for 2006-07	207
R&D Start — programme flexibility	208
Tourism promotion in the Australian Capital Territory	208
Parliamentary Departments	209
Citizenship Visit Programme — increase in funding	209
Parliamentary Departments — efficiency measures	209
Prime Minister and Cabinet	210
Australian Honours and Awards System — administration	210
Commonwealth Ombudsman — maintaining services	
Policy advice and the coordination of government policy — increased	
capacity	
Women's Programme — funding	211
Transport and Regional Services	212
Airservices Australia — extension of the Location Specific Pricing Subsidy	212
Auslink development and national transport regulation	212
Australian Capital Territory sawmills	212
Australian Transport Safety Bureau - new safety functions	213
Bushfire — aerial firefighting assistance	213
Bushfire Appeals — contributions to New South Wales, Victoria and the Australian Capital Territory	214
Civil Aviation Safety Authority — supplementary funding to cover the shortfall in aviation fuel excise revenue	214
Disaster Mitigation Australia Package	215
Melbourne Airport — additional quarantine infrastructure	215
National Airspace Reforms — supplementary funding	216
National Highway and Roads of National Importance Programme — additional funding	216
Regional office network	
Regional Partnerships	
Sydney Airport Noise Amelioration Programme	

Trai	nsport and Regional Services (continued)	
	Weipa electricity generation compensation package	217
Trea	asury	218
	Australian Competition and Consumer Commission — cessation of cost recovery for airport regulation	
	Australian Competition and Consumer Commission — implementation of the Wilkinson Report	
	Australian Competition and Consumer Commission — monitoring medical indemnity insurance premiums	
	Australian Competition and Consumer Commission — telecommunications competition regulation	
	Australian Prudential Regulation Authority — strengthened capabilities in prudential regulation	
	Australian Securities and Investments Commission — corporate disclosure initiatives	
	Australian Securities and Investments Commission — corporate insolvency initiative	221
	Australian Securities and Investments Commission — funding for the HIH investigations taskforce	
	Financial Reporting Council — funding to support expanded role	
	Fuel tax reform	222
	Languages Other Than English courses provided by ethnic schools — variation in Budget Balancing Assistance as a result of making courses	222
	GST-free Massures for a Retter Environment - closurer fuel	
	Measures for a Better Environment — cleaner fuel	
	disadvantage	
	Superannuation Complaints Tribunal — additional funding	225
Vet	erans' Affairs	
	Commemorative activities — increase funding	226
	Community Care Grants Programme — maintain funding	226
	Enhanced compliance programme	227
Par	t 3: Capital measures	229
Atto	orney-general's	233
	A Safer Australia — additional funding for financial monitoring by the Australian Transaction Reports and Analysis Centre	233
	A Safer Australia — enhanced checking of aviation security identification card holders	
	A Safer Australia — enhancing the counter-terrorism capabilities of the	234

Attorney-general's (continued)	
Australia's Southern Ocean - surveillance and enforcement	
programme	234
National Illicit Drugs Strategy — enhanced financial intelligence to	
target illicit drug trafficking and related activities	234
Proceeds of Crime legislation — additional funding for	225
implementation	
Communications, Information Technology and the Arts	
Freephone and Local Rate telephone number auctions	236
Cross Portfolio	237
Budget estimates — enhanced quality and timeliness	
Capital Use Charge — discontinuation	
Defence	220
Retention of Russell Offices	
Education, Science and Training	239
A Safer Australia — enhanced security for the Australian Nuclear Science and Technology Organisation	239
Our Universities - Higher Education Loans Programme (HELP) — HECS-HELP, FEE-HELP and OS-HELP	239
Our Universities — marine science institute	240
Radioactive waste management facility	241
Employment and Workplace Relations	242
Commonwealth Unfair Dismissal Scheme — expanded coverage	
Environment and Heritage	243
Meteorological radars — replacement and upgrade	
Sydney Harbour Federation Trust	
Family and Community Services	244
Assurance of Support Scheme — improved operation	
Centrelink Service Delivery — enhanced information technology	411
capability	244
Identity fraud — improving and increasing the number of	244
investigations	4 11
concession cards	245
Support for Indigenous people — expansion of Centrelink's agent and	
access point network	245

Finance and Administration	246
Christmas Island Permanent Immigration Reception and Processing	
Centre — completion of construction	246
Employment National — winding-up	247
Ministerial Communications Network — refurbishment and	
enhancement	247
Foreign Affairs and Trade	248
A Safer Australia — expansion of Australia's secure diplomatic communication network	248
A Safer Australia — measures to further enhance the response to terrorism	248
A Safer Australia — research into passport biometrics	249
Australian Secret Intelligence Service — enhanced output capabilities	
Geneva Chancery — defects rectification project	
Iraq — reopening of an Australian office	
New Delhi Chancery — construction of a new chancery and residential accommodation	
Paris Chancery — refurbishment of apartments	
Washington Head of Mission Residence — refurbishment	
Wellington Chancery — mid-life upgrade and refurbishment	
Immigration and Multicultural and Indigenous Affairs	252
Immigration and Multicultural and Indigenous Affairs	
A Safer Australia — enhanced border protection processing systems	252
A Safer Australia — enhanced border protection processing systems A Safer Australia - relocation of operations in Manila	252 252
A Safer Australia — enhanced border protection processing systems A Safer Australia - relocation of operations in Manila Immigration detention onshore — review of long-term strategy	252 252 253
A Safer Australia — enhanced border protection processing systems A Safer Australia - relocation of operations in Manila Immigration detention onshore — review of long-term strategy International Education — Professional Development Visa	252 252 253 253
A Safer Australia — enhanced border protection processing systems A Safer Australia - relocation of operations in Manila	252 252 253 253
A Safer Australia — enhanced border protection processing systems A Safer Australia - relocation of operations in Manila Immigration detention onshore — review of long-term strategy International Education — Professional Development Visa	252 252 253 253
A Safer Australia — enhanced border protection processing systems A Safer Australia - relocation of operations in Manila	252 252 253 253 254
A Safer Australia — enhanced border protection processing systems A Safer Australia - relocation of operations in Manila	252 252 253 253 254 254
A Safer Australia — enhanced border protection processing systems A Safer Australia - relocation of operations in Manila	252 252 253 254 254 255
A Safer Australia — enhanced border protection processing systems A Safer Australia - relocation of operations in Manila	252 252 253 254 254 255 255
A Safer Australia — enhanced border protection processing systems	252 252 253 254 254 255 255
A Safer Australia — enhanced border protection processing systems	252 252 253 254 254 255 255 255
A Safer Australia — enhanced border protection processing systems	252 253 253 254 254 255 255 255 256
A Safer Australia — enhanced border protection processing systems	252 253 253 254 254 255 255 255 256 256
A Safer Australia — enhanced border protection processing systems A Safer Australia - relocation of operations in Manila	252 252 253 254 254 255 255 256 256 256
A Safer Australia — enhanced border protection processing systems	252 253 253 254 254 255 255 255 256 256 256